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1. Name of Property

historic name: Camp Evans Historic District

other names/site number: Camp Evans Signal Laboratory Marconi Belmar Station Signal Corps Radar Laboratory
2. Location _

.streat and number: 2201 Marconi Road ‘ N/A not for publication
city or town: Wall Township N/A vicinity
state: New Jersey - county: Monmouth County 7 g’ ' .- zip code: 07719

3. State/Federal/Tribal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended, | hereby certify that this X nomination
""""" : request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the National Register of
H|stor|c Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. in my opinion, the property
D meets [_] does not meet the National Register criteria. | recommend that this property be considered significant

X nationally }~ statewide  locally, ([ ] See continuation sheet for additional comments.)
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Assistant Comfissioner for Natural and Historic Resources/ DSHPO
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in my opinion, the property [X] meets [_] does not meet the National Register criteria. ( [_] See continuation sheet for additional

comments.)
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Signature 'of certifying AT S Date
State or Federal agency and bureau . American Indian Tribe

4. National Park Service Certification

l herebgﬂwfy that the property is: ture of the Keeper Date of Action

entered in the National Register.
[] See continuation sheet. 3 l 2 (P / .700 2
[] determined eligible for the National Register.
[[] See continuation sheet.
D determined not eligible for the National Register.

[] removed from the National Register.
[] other. (explain:)




Camp Evans Historic District
Name of Property

Monmouth County, New Jersey
County and State

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box)
| private | building(s)
| public-local
| public-State

X public-Federal

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter "N/A" if property is not part of a muitiple property listing.)

N/A

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count.)

Contributing  Noncontributing

32 buildings
1 sites
18 structures
objects

51 0 Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed
in the National Register
N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Defense

Domestic

Education
Industry/Processing/Extraction
Social

Historic Subfunctions
(Enter subcategories from instructions)

College
Communications Facility
Meeting Hall

Military Facility

Multiple Dwelling

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions)

Vacant/Not In Use

Current Subfunctions
(Enter subcategories from instructions)

7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions)

N/A

Narrative Description

Materials

(Enter categories from instructions)
Foundation Concrete
Walls Terra Cotta
Roof Terra Cotta

(Describe the historic and current condition of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property
for National Register listing.)

X A Property is associated with events that have
made a significant contribution to the broad
patterns of our history.

‘X, B Property is associated with the lives of persons
significant in our past.

X C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics

of a type, period, or method of construction or
represents the work of a master, or possesses
high artistic values, or represents a significant and
distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield,
information important in prehistory or history.

Criteria Considerations

(Mark "x" in all the boxes that apply.)

Property is

- A owned by religious institution or used for
religious purposes..
removed from its original location.

a birthplace or grave.

B

Cc

D acemetery.
E areconstructed building, object, or structure.
F acommemorative property.

G

less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years.

Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions)

Architecture
Communications
Engineering
Invention

Military

Other

Social History

Period of Significance
1912-1975

Significant Dates

1914
1946 R

Significant Person
(Complete if criterion B is marked above)

Marconi, Guglielmo

Cultural Affiliation

Architect/Builder

JG White Engineering Corporation
John T. Rowland (1871-1945)
Richard Buckminster Fuller
William A. Goef
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9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography
{Cite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheets.)

Previous documentation on file (NPS:)

preliminary determination of individual listing (36
CFR 67) has been requested.

~ previously listed in the National Register

previously determined eligible by the National Register
designated a National Historic Landmark

. recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey

' recorded by Historic American Engineering Record

D See continuation sheet for additional
HABS/HAER documentation.

Primary location of additional data:

i State Historic Preservation Office

X Federal Agency (Repository Name: Command
Historican Collection, Fort Monmouth)

10.

Geographical Data

Acreage of Property: 55.00 -

UTM References
(Place additional UTM references on a continuation sheet )

1

18 580180 4448880
Zone Easting Northing
18 580500 4448480

Verbal Boundary Description
(Describe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet.)

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

3 18 580420 4448400
Zone Easting Northing
4 18 580100 4448520

E See continuation sheet
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11. Form Prepared By

name/title:  Fred Carl, Director; Robert Judge, Assistant Director, Mark Swanson, Historian

organization: Information Age Learning Center date: 8/1/1999
street & number: 2201 Marconi Road telephone: (732) 681-6018
city or town: Wall Township state: New Jersey zip code: 07719-

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the éompleted form:

Continuation Sheets

Maps

A USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's location.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage Or nUMErous resources.
Photographs

Representative black and white photographs of the property

Additional items an .
(Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items)

Property Owner
(Complete this item at the request of the SHPO or FPO.)

name: U.S. Army, Fort Monmouth

street & number: Attn: AMSEL-DCS telephone: (732) §32-3906
city or town: Fort Monmouth state: New Jersey zip code: 07703-5000

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Places to nominate
properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response to this request is required to obtain
a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470 ef seq. ).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 18.1 hours per response including time for reviewing
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding this burden estimate or any aspect
of this form to the Chief, Administrative Services Division, National Park Service, P.O. Box 37127, Washington, DC 20013-7127; and the Office of
Management and Budget. Paperwork Reductions Projects (1024-0018), Washington, DC 20503.
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Narrative Description

Camp Evans is a remarkably intact former U.S. Army secret research facility that was built around an earlier complex of buildings,
known as the Belmar Station, operated by the Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America. Camp Evans, also known as the
Signal Corps Radar Laboratory, the Camp Evans Signal Laboratory, Signal Corps Engineering Laboratory, and Evans Area, was
established in 1941. A search of available documentation has established that the history of Camp Evans is strongly tied to the
foundations of modern communications. The buildings and grounds that are at the heart of the Camp Evans three periods of
significance are outlined as planning areas B and C in Map 2. The Camp Evans Historic district would include planning areas B and
C. Historic photo 1 shows an aerial view of most of the buildings and grounds in planning area C, as photographed in the 1970s. The
three periods significant to the development of communications and national defense: A) the Marconi era (1912-1925) with 6
contributing buildings; B) the achievements of the Signal Corps Radar Laboratory during World War II, adding 19 buildings and 1
structure; C) Army research projects from the close of World War II through 1975, adding 9 buildings and 2 structures. The
establishment of this National Historic District would maintain the 1914 Marconi wireless station and later radar research facility
character and integrity for the benefit, education and enjoyment of future generations.

Marconi Period of Significance Historic Buildings

The original facility was constructed by the Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America as the:New York to London link in the
‘World Encircling Wireless Girdle’ (Sammis, Oct. 1912 Pg. 255, map 4). Built on a high bluff on the. south.bank of the Shark River
basin, the complex of buildings with grass lawns and 85-year-old sycamore trees creates:a park-like setting. The complex was a self-

_sufficient early twentieth century industrial village. The U.S. Army numbered the buildings in 1945. .In the 1970s the numbering
scheme was modified and is used here for easy cross reference to U.S. Army maps and surveys (Map 5). : Five buildings, 9001, 9002, -
9003, 9004 and 9006, are positively identified with the Marconi period. These buildings are considered significant for their
architecture, their historical association with the Marconi company, their significant role in WWI communication by the U.S. Navy,
and the significant persons associated with the station during this period. As constructed, the station complex included a wireless
operation building (9004), steam electric power plant (9006), 300 — 400-ft. tall wireless masts (now gone), a hotel (9001) and two
cottages for managers (buildings 9002 & 9003). The 1914 Henderson photo presents an excellent April 12, 1914 overview of the site -
(historic photo 2). Nearest to the Shark River and just a few feet above sea level is the operation building (9004) at the north end of
the district. The other buildings are all south of the operation building up a steep hill to approximate 70-Ft. elevation. The two
residences (9002 and 9003) are near the edge of the hilltop. Both are between River Road, later renamed Marconi Road, and the steep
hill to the river. Directly across sycamore tree lined Marconi Road (photo 1) from residence 9002 is the Marconi Hotel (9001). The
power plant (9006) is west of the hotel near the junction of Marconi Road and Monmouth Boulevard. Behind the hotel were
vegetable gardens, now replaced by later Army construction. Between the hotel and the power plant was the first of six 300-ft. masts.
The line of masts ran south for 2200 ft and can be seen in the historic Henderson photo. The masts were made of steel sections bolted
together. Large concrete anchors and steel wires supported each mast. The last mast was removed in 1924. The upper portion of one
of the Marconi balancing towers remains as part of a historic marker . ,

The Marconi buildings are good examples of early twentieth century industrial architecture that features unembellished substantial
brick masonry construction. They are not cast in any formal style but incorporate Craftsman and Spanish Colonial elements, such as
dormers, eave brackets, and Spanish Imperial roof tile, which are appropriate to their date of construction. Concrete is used as the sole
architectural accent on windowsills, piers, and porch supports. The J. G. White Engineering Corporation of New York constructed
this station for the American Marconi Company.

As a group, each Marconi building is fireproof with dark red brick exterior, with simple concrete accents and a lighter red tile roof.
The tiles bear the imprint “LUDOWICI-CELADON CO. CHICAGO IMPERIAL TILE”. The inside of each building is also
fireproof. The wood floors are nailed to wood strips laid on poured wire reinforced concrete floors with clay NATCO tile spacers to
reduce weight. Ceilings are concrete with clay tile spacers and the interior walls are made of plaster covered NATCO tiles. Wood
was only used in the flooring, doors, window frames, molding, and to nail the imperial roof tiles. Bolted angle iron trusses support
each tile roof. Except for Building 9004, the Marconi buildings have been well maintained by the Army during the past 60 years and
are in excellent condition. For example, nearly all the original copper leaders and gutters are intact and many of the original 85-year-
old sycamore trees planted in 1914 still grace the site.
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Buildings 9001, is a U-shaped, 2 ! story brick building constructed as a 45-bedroom hotel for unmarried employees. This substantial
building is utilitarian in style. A 1913 photo shows the hotel under construction (historic photo 6). The August 1914 issue of the
American Marconi publication Wireless Age featured a photo story of the station (historic photos 16 — 26) and in October 1914, the
Marconi Corporate publication Wireless World featured the station (historic photos 11 — 15). Building 9001’s three gable roofs are
finished with Imperial tile; a one story piazza, supported by brick piers and covered with tile, wraps around the building’s front and
side elevations (photo 17). An undated color postcard shows the front and east side of the hotel (photo 8). Photo 2 shows the front of
the hotel behind the overgrown ornamental bushes and photo 3 the rear. Comparing the present exterior to historic photos and original
drawings (plans 1 — 3), the exterior has few changes. The east set of Dining Room front double doors have been replaced by a
window, a fire escape has been added to the center rear and the rear of the kitchen area connects with a enclosed ramp to a 1942
constructed building.

The first floor interior features a center foyer hall with a large fireplace and stairs to the second floor (historic photo 18b). To the
each side of the foyer a large door leads to hallways (Plan 4). The right hall led to bedrooms, now offices. The left hall led to the
hotel office, two bedrooms, the lounge hall doors, dining room, and kitchen passage. Also, in the foyer were double doors leading to
the lounge. The lounge features a large fireplace and was used as a billiards room (photo 18a). The dining room sat up to fifty
persons, tables near windows had a view of the ocean (photo 19a). Behind the kitchen were double doors, which led to a pantry
which, led to the kitchen (photo 19b). In the kitchen was a walk-in freezer. Behind the kitchen there was a laundry room and stairs,
up to the servants bedrooms and down to the basement. The foyer, dining room, kitchen:and billiards rooms-were sub-divided into

; “offices-to meet wartime space needs. Upstairs (plan 5) at the top of the center foyer stairs is a hallway and across the hall, the former
* library. To either sides are halls which, led to bedrooms which are now offices. Also in the upstairs center hall are stairs to the attic.
Originally, the upstairs servants’ area hallway was separate from the main upstairs hallway and rooms: The Army connected them.
‘Due to the poured concrete floors all bathrooms floors were elevated eight inches to allow the pipes to be concealed. "The individual
-guest room plumbing and closets were removed by the Army, as well as the kitchen equipment.and walk-in freezers. .Plans 8 -9 show
* .the floor plan alterations made by the Army in 1941. Plan 10 shows the current floor plan. - Radar development workspaces are still
intact in the attic. In the east end of the attic are four 10-ft. by 10-ft. radio work booths with two layers of metal screens. In the ﬁxll
basement, the WWII blackout electrlc panel remams as well as the cold war era Fall-Out shelters.

Two brick bungalows are located across Marconi Road from the hotel (photo 4). Buildings 9002 (photo 5) and 9003 (photo 6), were
constructed for the station’s Manager and Chief engineer and were later used for Army officers’ housing. The bungalows are
rectangular, masonry buildings with hipped roofs finished with imperial tile and dormers facing front and back. Each residence has a
kitchen, dining room (historic photo 23a), living room (photo 23b), pantry, four bedrooms, a single bathroom, a porch, and a full
basement. A stairway leads to the two upstairs bedrooms. The porch of 9002 has been sub-divided by a masonry wall into a front
screen porch and a side glass block enclosed sunroom. The pantry wall of 9003 has been removed creating a larger kitchen.
Associated with each bungalow is a wood-frame garage. Comparison with historic photos 22a and 22b show the exteriors show little
alteration.

Building 9004 was the Operation Building for the Belmar Station near the edge of the Shark River (photo 7). This rectangular 83 by
30 ft., brick utilitarian building with a hip roof has a nearly full front porch supported by brick piers facing the north. Historic photos
indicate that the current composition shingle roof replaced the imperial tile. This building is in need of repair, but the substantial
masonry structure is intact. The front porch brick railings have been removed, and the eves are damaged. Most of the interior walls
were removed (plan 11), leaving a large room where once there were offices and operator rooms (historic photo 24a). The October
1914 Wireless World article describes the building, how a ring of buried zinc plates electrically grounded it, and how the basement
was waterproof. Time has defeated the engineers, the partial basement below water level has been flooded for many years. On the
west side of the original structure, a one room concrete block addition was added to house a heat unit. This addition has collapsed and
the boiler is exposed to the elements (photo 7). Just east of 9004 is 9005 (plan11). A 1949 photo shows the rear of 9004 and front of
9005 (photo 32). This single story wooden frame structure built on a concrete slab is very deteriorated with holes in the roof,
Building 9005 was on the property in 1941 acquisition maps, but it does not appear in the 1914 Henderson photo. The building may
have been built later by Marconi, the Navy, or RCA.
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Building 9006 is across Marconi Road, west of the hotel, near the intersection of Monmouth Boulevard and Marconi Road. Itisa
rectangular, brick building with a new asphalt shingle gable roof (photo 8). This was the Marconi steam-electric power and electric
lighting plant. An undated color postcard shows the building with the first 300ft Marconi masts in front of it (historic photo 9). The
interior was filled with boilers and equipment to supply electricity for the entire operation and steam heat to the hotel and cottages.

. The original boilers and generators were removed prior to 1938. The original 1913 plans show three sets of double doors have been
replaced with modern doors (plan 12) and one opening has been made into a double window. It has a one car garage brick addition on
the north side and an addition on the west side to house a heating unit (photo 9). The King’s College Class of 1938 used the building
as a biology laboratory. The Army, last used it as a electronics laboratory. The interior has been modified by the Army as a computer
laboratory and is in excellent condition (plan 13). Behind 9006 is a small well pump house (9081), it replaced an original Marconi
well house seen in a Marconi published photo (historic photo 21a).

Structure built by The Kings College

Building 9007 was constructed as a gymnasium for the students of The King’s College in 1938. Some of the students assisted in
finishing it in October 1938 as part of a work-study program. It was brick, with a bowed roof and parapet, large windows and was one
and one-half stories high (historic photo 29). The gym was in very poor condition, it was razed in October 1999 (historic photo 30).
The razing was necessary to remove contaminated soil under the building. The Army used it asa metal platmg shop, allowing
so]vents to leak into the ground. -

World War II Period of Szgmf icance Historic Structures

The second group of structures significant to communications history at Camp Evans were built by the U.S. Army to serve its mission
-during World War II as a radar production center, and its later transition to a research and development facility. Most of the buildings
‘were built in 1942. The key permanent buildings associated with this period are Buildings 9010, 9011, 9036, and 9037. Nearly all the
other structures built in 1942, were temporary wood frame construction designed to last five years. An aerial photograph from the
1970s shows most of the World War II constructed buildings behind the Marconi Hotel (historic photo 1).: As a group the buildings
are in good condition, but in need of paint. They have kept their WWII period look, with only minor exterior modxﬁcatlons Most
building interiors have been greatly modified to meet later mission requirements.

Buildings 9010 and 9011 are industrial, long, rectangular structures with 6 inch concrete slab floors, brick load bearing walls and
wood truss every 20 ft. supporting an asphalt shingle gable roof. Approximately 450 ft. by 60 ft., each is one story in height and has
four sections separated by firewalls and fire doors. Architect John T. Rowland, a noted New Jersey Architect, designed them in 1941
(plans 14 — 15). Building 9011 has a covered loading dock on the southwest side. A 1997 color photo taken from a tower provides an
elevated view of 9010 and 901 1(historic photo 33). Photo 10 shows a ground level view of 9010 looking east and photo 11, looking
west. Buildings 9010 and 9011 are connected at their centers by an enclosed brick walkway with a gable roof, forming one large,
“H”-shaped building, thus the name. Buildings 9036, and 9037 (photos 12 — 13) were added in late 1942 based on the Roland design,
William A. Goef was the architect (plan 16). Buildings 9036 and 9037 are similarly joined, to create the ‘H’ shape. The enclosed
hallway from 9011 connects to the west ends of both 9036 and 9037, as seen in historic photo 1. Each “H-building” is paired with a
brick boiler house (Buildings 9012 and 9038) that is situated within the building’s court space. Both “H” buildings are in good
condition and are fairly well preserved. The only exterior modifications since WWII construction are window security grates on some
windows, some upgraded windows, and occasional air-conditioning units on concrete pads. The two “H’ buildings have the same
interior design, a center hallway running the length of each building. Except for the firewalls all interior walls are non-load bearing
partition walls. On either side of the hallways are offices and laboratories. Building 9010 has had some modifications from the
original 1942 interior. The characteristic WWII Army radar laboratory interior is basically intact and in good condition. The interior
of 9011 is nearly identical to the original floor plan. It housed a tool area, sign shop, wood shop, metal shop, and vacuum tube
fabrication shop. 9011 is also in good condition, except for the east section. The old vacuum tube shop received little maintenance
and removal of equipment damaged partition walls. Buildings 9036 and 9037 have undergone considerable interior modifications to
meet the needs of the Electronics Warfare Laboratory, which replaced the 1950s electron tube and transistor laboratory. The original
wall treatments, windows, and doors have been replaces with 1980s materials. Some areas have raised computer room floors.
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Once found all over Camp Evans are the distinctive structures designed by American engineer Richard Buckminster Fuller, the
Dymaxion Deployment Unit (DDU). The units were produced by the Butler Manufacturing Company, a firm that manufactured
grainbins. They are pre-fabricated corrugated circular metal buildings (plan 20), made of a minimum of materials, and able to be
assembled by two persons in a few hours. Thirteen still exist today at Camp Evans today, while many empty circular concrete pads
testify to the numbers once in use. Three DDUs, adjacent to 9011, have been selected for restoration (photo 14). Three other DDUs
have survived in the proposed district and will be preserved. In the district are nine empty concrete pads where DDUs once stood.
There are seven DDUs and ten empty pads remaining outside the district.

Within the proposed district stand a number of single story wood frame contributing structures not specifically identified with historic
events or persons. They are 9029, 9031, 9032, 9034, and 9059. All can be seen in historic photo 1, except for 9059, which is blocked
by trees. As a group they were constructed in 1942-3 as support buildings for the radar laboratory mission. All have tan painted
clapboard with brown painted doors and trim. All have black asphalt roofs. They have remained nearly as built, a limited number of
new doors have been added, and window security grates added on some. West of ‘H’ building 9036 /9037 is Building 9029, a
square building, which served as the sheet metal shop. Next to it stands Building 9031, the post fire station. The fire station has a
garage for two trucks and sleeping quarters behind the garage. Building 9032 was a research library and administration building
annex building. It is L-shaped and connected to the Marconi Hotel (9001) by an enclosed brick walkway (plan 17). It runs from the
front east side of the hotel and behind it nearly its entire length. It has a center hallway with offices to either side. Except for the west
rear section, it has not been updated since original construction. Building 9034 (photos-15 — 16), a former electric shop, is :
rectangular in shape, approximately 60-ft. by 110-ft. Its design appears to be a wood version of a {H’ building section (plan 18).
Building 9059, the telephone exchange, is between 9032 and the Marconi power plant (9006), possibly where the base of the first
300-ft. mast was. It is a simple rectangle (plan 19). Its interior once contamcd telephone operator sw1tchboards currently it only
contams telephone switching equipment. : S

Not within the proposed district, an architecturally distinctive building type known as a “Special Antennae Cover,” designed by John .
T. Rowland and exemplified in Buildings 9015, 9017 (photo 17), 9019, 9021, 9023, 9025, 9045, 9047, 9049, 9051, 9053, and 9055,
are found at Camp Evans. Two stories in height and barn like in form, these frame buildings, originally supported by flying buttresses
instead of interior supports, had two pairs of oversize double doors. After WWII the antenna shelters were extensively altered to
accommodate their reuse as laboratories, office, or storage. Building 9023 still retains its flying buttresses, but like 9017, its original
double doors have been replaced with a single metal roll-up door. The building type, its design and original elevations are shown in
plan 21. Also found at Camp Evans is a WWII restricted airspace warning spotlight tower near Gate 3. This tower could be relocated
to within the historic district for preservation.

Structures constructed at Diana Site and main historic district area during Research Period of Significance

The Project Diana site, already on the New Jersey State Register, is east of the Marconi hotel. The original 100-ft. SCR-271D radar
antenna (historic photo 34 - 35), the wood frame electronics support structure housing the radar equipment used by Project Diana and
the later constructed 50-ft. diameter Diana Dish are no longer extant (historic photo 36). The support facility (building 9116) for the
Diana Dish and the footings from the Diana disk remain. A 1957 built 60-ft. diameter radar disk, the ‘Space Sentry’, and conduit
connected support facility (building 9162) still exist in the fenced two acre isolated site (photo 18). The existing structures and the
Space Sentry are associated with early satellite tracking and ionosphere research giving them significance. Building 9116 (photo 19)
is a one-story masonry structure, which appears to be an original center building and two additions. The interior has the look of a
1950s satellite control room. Building 9162 is also a one-story masonry structure that is connected via conduit to the 1957 “Space
Sentry’ satellite-tracking dish. The light green painted interior also has the appearance of a control room and support office. The
‘Space Sentry’ satellite-tracking dish is in good structural condition and the mechanical equipment appears to have been ‘moth-balled’
for possible future reactivation. The original electronics have been removed. In the main historic district one very simple one-story
concrete structure, building 9400, was built sometime in the early 1950s. The building, east of building 9010 (historic photo 1), was
where Senator Joe McCarthy’s staff was denied entrance. Three 20-ft. by 80-ft. steel utility buildings, on concrete foundations, were
added in the courtyards of the ‘H’ buildings. Along Monmouth Boulevard is a 20-ft. square steel building (9092). As a group they are
all made of corrugated metal with asphalt roofs. Finally, one-story Building 9093, a secure entrance and guardhouse, is just west of
the Marconi Hotel. It is frame construction with tan siding and brown doors and accents. It has an 18-ft. by 35-ft entrance hallway
with a guard office to control entrance at Gate 1 of Camp Evans.
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Table 1
Building Inventory, Camp Evans Historic District, Monmouth County, New Jersey

Bldg. No. Type* Original Use* Last Use* Date Built  Contributing Period*

9001 P Marconi Hotel, Sta. No.6 Administration - Firefinder 1914 C-1,2,3

9002 P Marconi manager cottage Military residence 1914 C-1,2,3

9003 P Marconi engineer cottage Military residence 1914 C-1,2,3

9004 P Marconi wireless operations  vacant 1914 C-1,23

9005 P Wireless support vacant 1918 ? C-1,2,3

9006 P Marconi power plant Computer facility 1914 C-1,2,3

9007 P King’s College Gymnasium  Metal plating shop 1938 Demolished 9/29/1999

9010 P Radar Laboratory Administration gen. purpose 1942 C-23

9011 P Radar Laboratory Metal, wood, sign, tube shops 1942 C-2.3

9012 P Heating oil plant Heating oil plant 1942 C-2,

9017 S Radar shelter Laboratory - Firefinder 1942 o -23

9029 S Signal administration Sheet metal shop 1942 C23

9030 P Heating oil plant Heating oil plant 1942 C-2,3

9031 S Fire station Fire station 1942 C-23

9032 S Signal administration annex = Administration gen. purpose 1942 C-2,3

9033 P Heating oil plant Heating oil plant 1942 C-2,3

9034 S Electric shop Laboratory. - Firefinder . 1942 C-23

9035 P Heating oil plant Heating oil plant 1942 C-23

9036 P Radar Laboratory Administration - EWL 1942 C-2,3

9037 P Radar Laboratory Administration - EWL 1942 C-2,3

9038 P Heating oil plant Heating oil plant 1942: C-2;3

9059 T Telephone exchange Telephone exchange 1944 - C-23

9065 P Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bldg. 1944 .. Not counted

9067 .. P Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bldg. 1944 - Not counted

9068 P Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bldg. 1944 - Not counted

9069 P Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bidg. 1944 Not counted

9070 P Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bldg. 1944 Not counted
- 9071 S Distr. Xfmr vault Distr. XFMR bldg. - 1944 Not counted

9081 P Wellhouse : 1943 C-23

9084 T General purpose warehouse  Secure metal shop 1946 C-3

9085 T General purpose warehouse  General purpose warehouse 1946 C3

9086 S Laboratory general purpose  Administration gen. purpose 1942 C-2,3

9092 T Laboratory general purpose  Laboratory general purpose 1958 C-3

9093 S Guard headquarters Sentry station 1951 C3

9097 T Laboratory general purpose  Foundry 1949 C3

9098 T Laboratory general purpose  General storehouse 1950 C-3

9116 P Diana dish support facility General storehouse 1950 ? C3

9162 P Space Sentry support facility General storehouse 1957 C-3

9195 P Space Sentry (Diana Site) Silent Sentry Dist (Diana Site) 1957 C-3

9196 T Platform (Diana Site) Platform (Diana Site) 1943 C-2,3

9178 Platform/tower Platform/tower ? C3

9400 P Laboratory general purpose  Administration gen. purpose 1952 C-3

No # T Dymaxion deployment units-6 Storage/laboratories 1942 C&1-2,3 (6 DDU)

No # T Empty Dymaxion unit pads-9 Former storage/laboratories 1942 C & I-2,3 (9 pads)

* P - Permanent ; S - Semi-permanent ; T - Temporary ; Distr. XFMR - Distributor Transformer; (C) - Contributing building (I) - Individually eligible
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Page 10

Camp Evans Historic District
Monmouth County, N. J.

Significant Persons

Marconi Era
Armstrong, Edwin (December 18, 1890 — February 1, 1954)
Sarnoff, David (February 27, 1891 — December 12, 1971)
Alexanderson, Emst F. W. (January 25, 1878 — May 14, 1975)
Weagant, Roy A. (March 29, 1881 — August 23, 1942)
Clark, George C. (1880 - 1950)
Taylor, A. Hoyt (1890 -)

1936 - 1941
Crawford, Reverend Percy (October 20, 1902 - October 31, 1960)

WWII Radar Laboratory
Colton, Col. Rodger B.
Corput, Lt. Col. Rex Jr.
Marchetti, John
Slattery, John
Watson, Paul v
Zahl, Harold (August 24,1904 — March 11, 1973)

Project Diana
DeWitt, Lt. Col. John (1906 — January 27, 1999)
" Kaufman, Herbert
Mofsenson, Jacob (? — August 19, 1969)
Stodola, E. King (? - April 6, 1992)
Webb, Dr. Harold D.
McAfee, Dr. Walter (September 19, 1914 — February 18, 1995

Research
Kronenberg, Dr. Stanley
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Statement of Significance

At the dawn of the Information Age of wireless communication, the Belmar Marconi station was a key link in the first worldwide
commercial wireless network. This station would play a part in fundamental innovations, host significant persons, and help prepare
our nation for electronic defense. During 85 years, as communications technology went from spark, to alternator, to vacuum tubes,
printed circuits, transistors, satellites, fiber optics, integrated circuits, and the internet this historic location saw it all. In national
defense, the station would play a part in the beginnings of electronic warfare in WWI and participate in all major innovations leading
to the modern integrated electronic battlefield fielded today. Camp Evans has exceptional importance in the development of
communications, electronics, radar, and television, including their application.

The historic events that occurred at Camp Evans fall within three periods significant to the development of communications and
national defense: A) the Marconi era; B) the achievements of the Signal Corps Radar Laboratory during World War II; C) later Army
research projects from the close of World War II through 1975. In terms of level of significance, Camp Evans, the former Marconi
Belmar Station has exceptional state and national significance under NRHP criteria A, B, and C for its role in the development of
twentieth century communications and in establishing the United States Army’s superior electronic capabilities in national defense.
The site has a distinct period of social significance, March of 1925 to June of 1932, when a corporation named the Monmouth
Pleasure Club owned the site which functioned as the unofficial state headquarters of the Ku Klux Klan.

The increasing data which has been gathered on the Marconi era in Wall Township and the pre-military beginnings of Camp Evans as
a Marconi High Power Wireless Station, has shown Camp Evans to have been an early communications commercial enterprise and
research center. Associated with the station were significant leaders during the formative period of modern communications,
communications technology and WWI wartime communications. The site served as the Naval WWI wireless communication center.
The history of modern communications is strongly tied to the history and growth of the State of New Jersey in the twentieth century.
One building of the complex, the Marconi hotel, is listed on the New Jersey Register of Historic Places. In terms of level of
significance, the Belmar Station period has achieved state and national significance for its role in the development of twentieth- .
century communications as the use of Marconi’s invention expanded beyond its original maritime uses to become a world wide
wireless commercial industry. The station was part of the “wireless girdle round the earth ”, conceived and constructed by Marconi to
expand his wireless commercial maritime system into a world wide commercial communication network to compete with cable based
telegraph companies.

After the Marconi period, the site was used as a Nursing Home, a social club with close associations to the Ku Klux Klan and finally,
was the first campus of The King’s College, a Christian College.

The integration of ongoing research, fact collecting and recording of oral historical information documents the second period of
significance. It was during this period that Camp Evans emerged as one of the nation’s premier wartime radar production and research
and development facilities during World War II. Camp Evans radar officers and technicians worked with British radar experts sharing
information to improve Allied radar equipment quality and performance. In many instances Camp Evans radar teams set
specifications, directed, contracted and coordinated wartime radar research and production with other US wartime radar laboratories.
Camp Evans and its contributions to WWII national defense and radar technology research are of unquestionable exceptional
significance at the national and state level under NRHP criteria A, B, and C. The radar developed and produced at Camp Evans had
an enormous impact on our country’s ability to wage war successfully. The lab also developed component parts that would become
integral to modern communication systems. Equipment developed, prototyped, tested, battle hardened, documented, and upgraded at
Camp Evans saw use in all WWII theaters of war and protected American military assets world-wide. In some cases equipment went
directly into battle from Camp Evans to meet critical needs.

The Project Diana site, already on the New Jersey Register of Historic Places, is where the most famous event to occur at Camp Evans
took place and foreshadowed the third period of significance. This site, in the northeast corner of Camp Evans, honors the electronic
dawn of the space age by engineers who proved that radio waves could pierce the earth’s ionosphere. Project Diana, named for the
Roman goddess of the moon, was headed by Lt. Col. John J. DeWitt in 1945-1946. The significance of Project Diana is exceptional at
the national and international level under NRHP criteria A and B. The demonstration and proof that the ionosphere could be pierced,
and that communication was possible between earth and the universe beyond, opened the possibility of space exploration and had
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worldwide social and scientific impact. Later at the Diana Site, upgraded radar equipment would be used to track the first satellite,
Sputnik and subsequent U.S. and Soviet spacecraft and satellite launches.

The third and final period of significance under NRHP criteria A and B is the post WWII Cold War era, when the US military realized
that future wars would require a commitment to fundamental scientific research and the incorporation into defense systems. During
WWII, the value of cutting edge communications equipment and radar was recognized, as giving the US military the decisive edge
needed for victory in the battlefield. Camp Evans personnel conducted research on site and were involved in projects world wide to
support military communications and Electronic Warfare preparedness. Equipment, components, basic research and engineering
projects provided components to communications technology, satellite technology, weather analysis and nucleonics. Equipment
designed, prototyped, and tested at Camp Evans played a role in every US conflict, including the Cold War. At the beginning of this
period, the Signal Corps researched areas and invested in emerging technology for military needs in which industry had no
requirements or need to invest. Some of these developments proved fundamental to modern communications. At the close of the
period, however, industry found lucrative applications for these Signal Corps inspired investments and the military could now select
and modify commercially produced components. Principle among many advances was the Signal Corps support of electronics
miniaturization. When Bell Laboratories disclosed its new breakthrough, the transistor, engineers of Camp Evans were positioned to
play an important roll in the emerging technology. A politically inspired threat and cloud during this activity was the campaign,
accusations and the attempts to show that some Camp Evans personnel had communist connections. The pivotal event was a face-off
with security personnel at Camp Evans when Senator Joe McCarthy visited with a group and demanded entry into top-secret areas
without proper security clearance.

Camp Evans developed, tested, improved and integrated numerous electronic components thatiwere deployed in many defense
systems. A number of Army engineering projects were managed, developed and prototyped at. Camp Evans. Those we currently have
information about are Flreﬁnder REMBASS and J-Stars

Hlstorlcal background and significance:
The Marconi Era, 1912 to 1925

On July 12, 1912, the Marconi Company purchased land within Wall Township to serve as the headquarters for its American wireless
subsidiary, named the Marconi Wireless Telegraph Company of America (Klein et al. 1984:2.20; Zahl 1970b, deed, W. J. Robinson to
Marconi, Bk. 933 Pg. 289). Marconi’s vision was to create a “wireless girdle round the earth... using Nature’s ether as a conductor”.
This would aid maritime safety and compete with the undersea cable telegraph companies selling less costly wireless telegram service
(Sammis 1912 Pg. 255). The Titanic disaster proved the value of Marconi’s wireless system. Investors and new customers provided
capital enabling the construction of these high-power stations on a grand scale, with quality of construction and amenities not enjoyed
in the wireless industry at the time. Another result of the Titanic sinking was the passage by Congress of the Radio Act of 1912 that
would impact the Marconi stations in the future. The original concept started with nine links for a message to circle the giobe (map 4).
Belmar station was a part of the New York to London link and the New York to Panama link. The J. G. White Engineering
Corporation of New York constructed these stations for the Marconi Company at eight locations in the United States, two of which
were in New Jersey. Even though the land was located in Wall Township, the station was called the Belmar Station, as Belmar was
the nearest town with a rail station, just across the Shark River Basin, and the Belmar Post Office served the location and does so to
this day. Similarly, the New Brunswick station was located in Franklin Township and named for the more widely known town. Each
set of stations acted as a pair requiring a separation of at least 20 miles due to technology limitations of the day. Belmar was the
receiving station, New Brunswick the transmitting station. Each operations building was located near an inlet or river connected to the
ocean for effective electrical grounding. At Belmar, up to 30 wireless operators were on duty to receive messages from Carnavon,
Wales, transcribe the messages by hand and forward the messages over landlines to the Marconi office on Broad Street, New
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York City, or Philadelphia. Belmar operators also keyed messages for automatic transmission by equipment at New Brunswick to
Towyn, Wales. (Bucher 1920 Pg. 293; Wireless World 1914 Pg. 414). As wireless technology improved, transmission distances
would increase and more operator tasks were automated. The New Brunswick station operations buildings and masts are no longer
standing and the last residential buildings are to be razed for a commercial business.

Camp Evans, the former Belmar station, is located about 20 miles south of Twin Lights, Highlands, NJ, the site of Marconi’s 1§99
first wireless demonstration in America at the America’s Cup Sailboat races. Wireless was a new maritime industry and this was the
start of worldwide commercial wireless expansion with Belmar a part of the transatlantic link. Marconi had sent the very first
transatlantic message in 1901, and Marconi’s first transatlantic radio tower had been set up at Twin Lights in 1907 (Zahl 1970a). In
the late 1930’s at Twin Lights, Army engineers who later relocated to Belmar station (Camp Evans) would also test their new radio
advancement, radar. At Wall, Marconi improved on the Twin Lights arrangement by setting up some 30 radio towers. Six of these
towers were over 300 feet tall, constructed in a straight line (Zahl 1970b: Wireless World 1914 Pg. 414). These towers can be seen in
the historic Henderson photos (historic photos 2, 10). Of all the towers, only the top portion of a 150ft. balancing tower remains
today, having fallen in 1974. It was relocated on Marconi Road between Brighton Ave and Laural Gully Brook as a historic
landmark, by Wall Township. Near the intersection of Monmouth Boulevard. and Watson Road a large concrete anchor from the
second 300ft tower remains. The only known, remaining 300ft tower base with two of the original four anchors is located
approximately 100ft west of the intersection of Monmouth Bl. and Harrison St., about 10ft from the Harrison street edge. The ring of
bolts to secure the iron mast sections still protrudes from the concrete base. The anchors are opposxte one another in resident’s yards
each approximately 75ft from the base.

Sull extant are the Marconi Hotel (Building 9001), the bungalows across the street from the main. building: (Buildings 9002 and 9003),
the Operations Building (Building 9004), and Power Plant (Building 9006) and Well House (9081). The J. G. White Engineering
Corporation designed, as Station No. 6, all the Marconi buildings in June of 1913. Mark Swanson of New South Associates located a
number of the original 1913 architectural plans (plans 1 —7, 12) during his valuable research and deed survey. His work adds a great
deal to the knowledge of Camp Evans prior to Army take over and documents the title chain of properties purchased by the Marconi .
Company and later the US Army (Reed-and Swanson 1999).

Completed in 1914, the hotel was used as the administrative center and housing for the nearly 50 personnel needed to maintain the 24
hr. wireless operations. The operators were mostly unmarried men and the accommodations at the hotel and station were luxurious for
the day, especially when compared to shipboard wireless duty. The operations <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>